
 

Meeting contact Carol Russell on 01257 515*** or email carol.russell@chorley.gov.uk 

 

 
 
 
 
 

SPECIAL COUNCIL 
TUESDAY, 25TH NOVEMBER 2014, 6.30 PM 
COUNCIL CHAMBER, TOWN HALL, CHORLEY 
 

AGENDA 
  

APOLOGIES 
 

1 MINUTES OF MEETING TUESDAY, 23 SEPTEMBER 2014 OF 
COUNCIL   

 

(Pages 3 - 10) 

2 DECLARATIONS OF ANY INTERESTS 
 

 

 Members are reminded of their responsibility to declare any pecuniary interest 
in respect of matters contained in this agenda. 
  
If you have a pecuniary interest you must withdraw from the meeting. Normally 
you should leave the room before the business starts to be discussed. You do, 
however, have the same right to speak as a member of the public and may 
remain in the room to enable you to exercise that right and then leave 
immediately. In either case you must not seek to improperly influence a 
decision on the matter. 
 

 

3 MAYORAL ANNOUNCEMENTS   
 

 

4 PUBLIC QUESTIONS 
 

 

 Members of the public who have requested the opportunity to ask 
question(s) on any item(s) on the agenda will have three minutes to put 
their question(s) to the relevant Councillor. Members of the public will 
be allowed to ask one short supplementary question. 
 

 

5 CORPORATE STRATEGY 2014/15 TO 2016/17 
 

(Pages 11 - 24) 

 To consider the attached report of the Chief Executive. 
 

 

6 CHORLEY YOUTH ZONE 
 

 

 To consider a report of the Director of Public Protection, Streetscene 
and Community (to follow). 
 

 

7 COUNCIL APPOINTMENT 
 

 

 To appoint Councillor Mark Jarnell as Council Champion for Young 
People. 
 

 



8 ANY URGENT BUSINESS PREVIOUSLY AGREED WITH THE 
MAYOR   

 

 

 

GARY HALL  

CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
 
Electronic agendas sent to Members of the Council.  
 

If you need this information in a different format, such as larger print or 
translation, please get in touch on 515151 or chorley.gov.uk 
 
To view the procedure for public questions/ speaking click here 
https://democracy.chorley.gov.uk/ecSDDisplay.aspx?NAME=SD852&id=852&rpid=0&sch=
doc&cat=13021&path=13021  
 

https://democracy.chorley.gov.uk/ecSDDisplay.aspx?NAME=SD852&id=852&rpid=0&sch=doc&cat=13021&path=13021
https://democracy.chorley.gov.uk/ecSDDisplay.aspx?NAME=SD852&id=852&rpid=0&sch=doc&cat=13021&path=13021


Council Tuesday, 23 September 2014 

 
 
 
MINUTES OF COUNCIL 
 
MEETING DATE Tuesday, 23 September 2014 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:  Councillor Roy Lees (Mayor), Councillor Marion Lowe 

(Deputy Mayor) and Councillors Eric Bell, Julia Berry, 
Alistair Bradley, Terry Brown, Henry Caunce, 
Jean Cronshaw, Matthew Crow, John  Dalton, 
David Dickinson, Doreen Dickinson, Graham Dunn, 
Robert Finnamore, Christopher France, Gordon France, 
Margaret France, Anthony Gee, Danny Gee, 
Peter Goldsworthy, Mike Handley, Steve Holgate, 
Keith Iddon, Mark Jarnell, Hasina Khan, Paul Leadbetter, 
Adrian Lowe, Matthew Lynch, June Molyneaux, 
Greg Morgan, Alistair Morwood, Mick Muncaster, 
Steve Murfitt, Beverley Murray, Mark Perks, 
Dave Rogerson, Joyce Snape, Kim Snape, Ralph Snape, 
Richard Toon, John Walker, Paul Walmsley, 
Alan Whittaker and Peter Wilson 

  
OFFICERS:  Gary Hall (Chief Executive), Lesley-Ann Fenton (Director 

of Customer and Advice Services), Jamie Carson (Director 
of Public Protection, Streetscene and Community), Alex 
Jackson (Legal Services Team Leader) and Carol Russell 
(Democratic Services Manager) 

 
APOLOGIES:  Councillors Charlie Bromilow and Pauline Phipps 
 
 

14.C.178 Minutes of meeting Thursday, 4 September 2014 of Council  
 
RESOLVED – that the minutes of the last meeting of the Council (as revised and 
circulated) be approved as a correct record for signature by the Mayor. 
 

14.C.179 Declarations of Any Interests  
 
There were no declarations of interest received. 
 

14.C.180 Mayoral Announcements  
 
The Mayor announced slightly revised arrangements for Remembrance Sunday on 9 
November and a Festival of Remembrance to be held in the Lancastrian Suite on the 
evening of Saturday 8 November.  
  
The Mayor further updated on his fundraising activities, raising over £1,800 at his 
Lancashire Night and promoting a Chorley’s Got Soul Night on 14 November. He 

Agenda Page 3 Agenda Item 1



Council Tuesday, 23 September 2014 

referred to a Macmillan Coffee Morning which the Deputy Mayor had arranged on 29 
September and which all Members were encouraged to attend. 
  
The Mayor then announced a slight change to the order of the agenda to allow the 
item on Croston Flood Risk Management Scheme Update to be considered next. 
 

14.C.181 Croston Flood Risk Management Scheme Update  
 
The Executive Member for Resources presented a report on the Croston Flood Risk 
Management Scheme which had been agreed at Executive Cabinet on 28 August 
2014 and referred to Council for approval to the funding of the shortfall of £1.1m for 
the project.  
  
Executive Cabinet had proposed that the Council should contribute £600,000 to the 
scheme and that consultation should take place with Croston residents on the 
introduction of a local levy to fund the remaining shortfall of £500,000.  
  
Since then the Executive Leader and Executive Member for Resources had continued 
to seek other funding sources to avoid the need for a local levy which they knew was 
an unpopular option, viewed as unfair on Croston residents. They were also mindful 
that a solution to the funding gap had to be found as soon as possible to avoid losing 
the remaining grant funding of £4.5million. Therefore he put forward a new proposal at 
the meeting, proposing that the Council meet the full £1.1million funding gap through a 
loan paid back over a 50 year period. He added that the Council would continue to 
lobby other agencies to help with contributions to the scheme and he hoped local 
residents would support him in this approach. 
  
Councillors Perks and a number of other councillors expressed their support for the 
new approach and felt that local residents would be delighted with the outcome. 
  
Councillor Peter Wilson, Executive Member for Resources proposed and Councillor 
Alistair Bradley, Executive Leader seconded and it was RESOLVED 

  
1.    That the report be noted; and  

  
2.    That the Council agrees to bridge the funding gap of £1.1million and incur 

borrowing for a period of 50 years but continues to investigate other 
opportunities for funding, other than the introduction of a local levy on 
residents.  

 
14.C.182 Public Questions  

 
There had been three questions received from members of the public regarding the 
funding of the Croston Flood Risk Management Scheme, however these were 
withdrawn following the Council decision to fully fund the gap of £1.1million. 
  
A public question was submitted by Mr W Rouse of Nightingale Way, Gillibrand South 
regarding maintenance and adoption issues on the Gillibrand Estate, specifically the 
continuing vandalism of the ground, trees and shrubs opposite nos. 6 to 11 
Nightingale Way; the use of the area as a football pitch; the need for a no ball games 
sign for that area; better maintenance required on the existing playing fields created by 
the developers; and safety issues around the pond where the danger signs were 
continually ripped up and the lifebelt thrown into the deep pond on a regular basis. 

Agenda Page 4 Agenda Item 1



Council Tuesday, 23 September 2014 

  
In response, Councillor Paul Walmsley, Executive Member for Public Protection said 
that the Council had been working with developers, local residents and the police to try 
and make progress on these issues. The estate was unadopted and this did create 
issues around the Council maintaining areas still in the ownership and charge of 
developers. However, the safety of the pond had been addressed and the police kept 
informed; grassed areas were being tidied up by the Council although he thought a no 
ball games sign would not be an effective deterrent. The areas need to be safe and 
respected and the Council would try and work with the local community to achieve 
this.  
 

14.C.183 Freedom of the Borough  
 
Councillor Peter Wilson, Executive Member for Resources asked the Council to 
consider granting Freedom of the Borough to 3 Medical Regiment who now 
commanded 64 Medical Squadron based at the Army Reserve Centre on Devonshire 
Road Chorley.  
  
As background, Councillor Wilson explained that the Council had granted Freedom of 
the Borough status to 5 Medical Regiment in 2007. 64 Medical Squadron was 
previously part of 5 Medical Regiment but earlier this year was moved under the 
command of 3 Medical Regiment who moved into Fulwood Barracks, Preston in 
August this year.  
  
In view of the change in Regiment, the Council was being asked to consider granting 
Freedom of the Borough status to 3 Medical Regiment. This would acknowledge the 
Council’s continued commitment to and appreciation for the work of 64 Medical 
Squadron. 
  
Formal granting of Freedom of the Borough was normally undertaken at a Special 
Meeting of the Council meeting prior to a Church Service with the Mayor presenting a 
Freedom Scroll to the Commanding Officer and the Regiment marching though the 
town. If agreed, this would take place at a future date to be agreed with the Regiment. 
  
Members from all political parties spoke in favour of the proposal as a demonstration 
of the value and pride the Council placed in the work of the Regiment. 
  
RESOLVED – That a Special Meeting of the Council be organised to grant 
Freedom of the Borough to 3 Medical Regiment prior to a Church Service and 
the presentation of a Freedom Scroll to the Commanding Officer.  3 Medical 
Regiment would also be invited to then march though the town.   
  
 

14.C.184 Executive Cabinet  
 
Members considered a general report of the meeting of the Executive Cabinet held on 
28 August 2014. 
  
Councillor Alistair Bradley, Executive Leader proposed and Councillor Peter Wilson, 
Executive Member for Resources seconded and it was RESOLVED – that the report 
be noted. 
 

 

Agenda Page 5 Agenda Item 1



Council Tuesday, 23 September 2014 

14.C.185 Revenue and Capital Budget Monitoring 2014/15: Report 1 (End of June 2014)  
 
Councillor Peter Wilson, Executive Member for Resources presented a Revenue and 
Capital Budget Monitoring Report for 2014/15 for the first quarter (to the end of June) 
which had been considered at Executive Cabinet on 28 August and required full 
Council approval to some elements of the report. 
  
Councillor Peter Wilson, Executive Member for Resources proposed and Councillor 
Alistair Bradley, Executive Leader seconded and it was RESOLVED -  
  

1.    That approval be given to the transfer of £100,000 of additional income 
from Market Walk to invest in the Town Centre Grants Programme and 
that any surplus additional income, currently forecast to be around 
£163,000, be divided on a 80:20 basis between two reserves: the 
equalisation reserve to smooth any fall in forecast income from Market 
Walk in future years; and the change management reserve which 
would assist in funding future organisational change. 
  

2.    That approval be granted to a £30,000 increase to the Adlington Play 
and Recreation budget in the capital programme, funded from  Section 
106 contributions. 

  
3.    That approval be granted to the proposed re-profiling of the Capital 

Programme to better reflect delivery in 2014/15.  
  
 

14.C.186 Overview and Scrutiny Committee  
 
Members considered a general report of the Overview and Scrutiny Performance 
Panel held on 10 July 2014. Councillor John Walker, Chair of the Committee, thanked 
Councillor Adrian Lowe for his contributions to that meeting which had undertaken a 
performance focus of streetscene services. 
  
Councillor John Walker, Chair of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee proposed and 
Councillor June Molyneaux, Vice Chair seconded and it was RESOLVED – that the 
report be noted. 
 

14.C.187 Governance Committee  
 
Members considered a general report of the meeting of Governance Committee held 
on 12 September 2014. 
  
Councillor Paul Leadbetter, Chair of the Governance Committee proposed and 
Councillor Julia Berry seconded and it was RESOLVED – that the report be noted. 
 

14.C.188 Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 2014  
 
Members considered a report of the Chief Executive on requirements under the new 
Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 2014 which came into force on 6 
August 2014 and required local authorities to make specific provision in two key areas: 

         The recording and filming of the public parts of Council and committee 
meetings including using mobile phones and social media to share information; 
and 

Agenda Page 6 Agenda Item 1



Council Tuesday, 23 September 2014 

         Producing a published record of officer delegated decisions relating to 
permissions, licences and certain contracts and expenditure. 

  
Appended to the report was a suggested protocol to be adopted for use in Council and 
committee meetings providing guidance on the use of mobile phones, social media, 
filming and for recording of meetings.  
  
The regulations also stated that local authorities must produce a written record of 
certain decisions taken by officers acting under delegated powers and published as 
soon as practicable. Decisions required to be published were those granting a 
permission or licence; those affecting the rights of an individual; the award of a 
contract or the incurring of expenditure materially affects the Council’s position. The 
report set out how the Council intended to implement this requirement which would 
include the publication of all licences issued by the Council, all contracts over 
£100,000, plus building control decisions and notices. 
  
Councillor Alistair Bradley, Executive Leader proposed and Councillor Peter Wilson, 
Executive Member for Resources seconded and it was RESOLVED –  
 

1.    That the proposed protocol for the use of mobile phones, social media, 
filming and recording at meetings as appended to the report be approved 
and incorporated into the Council’s Constitution as a new section F in 
Appendix 3, the section containing Standing Orders ; and 

  
2.    That the proposals for recording officer decisions be approved and 

authority is delegated to the Monitoring Officer to make any necessary 
amendments to the Constitution to implement them.    

 
14.C.189 Statement of Community Involvement 2014  

 
Members considered a report of the Chief Executive, presented by Councillor Paul 
Walmsley, Executive Member for Public Protection and seeking approval to the 
adoption of a revised Statement of Community Involvement 
  
The Statement of Community Involvement (SCI) provides the community and other 
interested parties with clarity on the levels of involvement in the planning process. It 
details how the Council will consult in relation to preparing planning policy documents 
and in determining planning applications. Once agreed, the Council is required to act 
in accordance with the adopted document. The Council adopted an SCI in 2006, and a 
revised draft had been subject to a 4 week consultation receiving 8 responses. No 
changes were proposed to the main body of the document although relevant statutory 
consultees had been added to Appendix 1 of the document.  
  
Councillor Alistair Bradley, Executive Leader proposed and Councillor Paul Walmsley, 
Executive Member for Public Protection seconded it and it was RESOLVED –  that 
the Statement of Community Involvement be approved for adoption. 
  
 

14.C.190 Public Footpath No.6 Adlington: Proposed Public Path Diversion Order  
 
Councillor Paul Walmsley, Executive Member for Public Protection presented a report 
seeking confirmation of the Chorley Borough Council (Public Footpath No. 6 
Adlington) Public Footpath Diversion Order 2014. 

Agenda Page 7 Agenda Item 1



Council Tuesday, 23 September 2014 

  
The diversion was necessary to accommodate further development at Fairview Farm, 
Adlington. The Council had received only one objection to the proposed diversion and 
this had since been withdrawn.  
  
Councillor Paul Walmsley, Executive Member for Public Protection proposed, 
Councillor Alistair Bradley, Executive Leader seconded it and  it was RESOLVED –  
  

1.    That the Head of Governance be authorised to confirm as an unopposed 
order the Chorley Borough Council (Public Footpath No.6 Adlington) 
Public Footpath Diversion Order 2014; and 

  
2.    That the Head of Governance be authorised to arrange any necessary 

press advertisements regarding the Order and serve such notices as 
required by the Highways Act 1980. 

 
14.C.191 Appointments to the Working Group on Unitary Status  

 
Further to the Council Meeting on 4 October, when a working group had been 
established to consider issues relating to the Council’s interest in unitary status, the 
Executive Leader nominated five Labour Councillors to serve on the Working Group. 
Councillor R Snape had been nominated to represent the Independent Group and it 
was reported that the Conservative Group did not wish to take up membership of the 
Working Group at this stage. The Executive Leader reported that two places would 
remain available to the Conservative Group should they change their mind but also 
that all Members would be able to attend the Working Group meetings in an observer 
capacity as long as they maintained confidentiality. The Group would be entitled 
Future Governance Viability Working Group. 
  
The Executive Leader also requested a change in appointments to the Development 
Control Committee and LDF Working Group. 
  
Councillor Alistair Bradley, Executive Leader proposed and Councillor Peter Wilson, 
Executive Member for Resources seconded and it was RESOLVED –  
  

1.    That the membership of the Future Governance Viability Working Group 
be as follows; Councillors A Bradley, S Holgate, H Khan, A Lowe, R Snape 
and R Toon with all Members invited to attend in an observer capacity; 
and 

  
2.    That Councillor Steve Holgate replace Councillor Matthew Crow as Chair 

and member of the Development Control Committee and also as a 
Member on the LDF Working Group. 

 
14.C.192 Questions Asked under Council Procedure Rule 8  

 
There were no questions under Procedure Rule 8. 
 

14.C.193 To consider the Notices of Motion given in accordance with Council procedure 
Rule 10  
 
The Executive Leader, Councillor Alistair Bradley referred to a letter from Sefton 
Council Labour Group which sought support for a motion that had received cross party 

Agenda Page 8 Agenda Item 1



Council Tuesday, 23 September 2014 

support at a recent Sefton Council meeting, raising concerns about the impact of 
changes to the national planning system with Eric Pickles, Secretary of State for 
Communities and Local Government.  
  
The motion passed was appended to the letter and referred specifically to the National 
Planning Policy Framework; Prior Notifications; Changes to the Use Classes Orders; 
the Localism Act – Neighbourhood Planning and Community Right to Bid; and the 
Abolition of Regional Planning.  
  
Members debate the motion put forward by Sefton and it was RESOLVED – That this 
Council, calls on the Secretary of State for Communities and Local Government, 
Mr. Eric Pickles MP, to examine the changes the Coalition Government has 
made to this country’s planning system to see if they are working for the benefit 
of the communities.  Some of the issues are detailed below: 
 

        The National Planning Policy Framework 

There is a body of opinion that sees this as a ‘Developers Charter’ where the 
rules have shifted in favour of allowing much more development. 

         Prior Notifications 

Several kinds of developments can now progress without the need for full 
application and full assessment of impacts. In most cases these don’t include 
highway issues and ignore issues that many residents may be concerned 
about. Types of development covered by these changes include large house 
extensions, changes between different uses, changes of agricultural buildings 
to many other uses like hotels etc. Councils still need to determine these prior 
notifications, in many instances with no fee and with reduced timescales for 
decision making. 

         Changes to the Use Classes Orders 

Now a much wider range of uses than ever can change to another use without 
the need for planning permission. These include shops to residential - what will 
this mean for our town centres? Restaurants to offices, shops to building 
societies or credit unions. These are only a small number of the changes of use 
that are now possible without needing planning permission. 

         Localism Act - Neighbourhood Planning and Community Right to Bid 

Neighbourhood Planning could be a positive tool to support our own local plans. 
The process has been designed so that communities can help plan their local 
areas, but only if they accept the same, or more, development than our own 
Local Plan. Community Right to Bid - this is in danger of becoming a tool to stall 
development proposals months when key assets come up for sale. This does 
not provide certainty and speed for new developments – it provides the 
opposite. 

         Abolition of Regional Planning 

This was intended to bring more effective local decision making through the 
removal of a whole regional tier of control and influence in strategic planning. 
This has resulted in each local authority now having to prepare their own 
evidence and their own estimates about how many houses they need to build in 
their area. 

 
 
 
 
Mayor Date  

Agenda Page 9 Agenda Item 1



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Report of Meeting Date 

Chief Executive 
(Introduced by the Executive 

Member for Resources, Policy 
and Performance) 

Full Council  
25 November 

2014 

 

CORPORATE STRATEGY 2014/15 TO 2016/17 

 

PURPOSE OF REPORT 

1. To seek approval for the refresh of the Corporate Strategy 2014/15 to 2016/17. 

 

RECOMMENDATION(S) 

2. That the Corporate Strategy 2014/15 to 2016/17 be approved. 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY OF REPORT 

3. The report provides a summary of the performance of the Corporate Strategy in 2013/14 and the 
changes proposed as part of the Corporate Strategy refresh for 2014/15.  

 

4. Performance of the 2013/14 Corporate Strategy is strong with 80% of projects completed or on track 
to deliver outcomes by the end of April 2015. Two projects (10%) will progress to the next stages of 
delivery as part of the refresh of the 2014/15 Corporate Strategy; these are Friday Street Health 
Centre and the Chorley Youth Zone. The two remaining projects (10%), the development of Astley 
Park and the Play and Open Spaces Strategy, are much larger programmes of work with delivery 
scheduled over a number of years. These two projects will continue to be delivered and monitored 
through the delivery of the organisational plan.  

 

5. The projects have performed well delivering tangible improvements for residents across the borough. 
Visible improvements have been delivered in the town centre and across the borough with 
improvements to local neighbourhood areas and parks and open spaces. Increased employment 
opportunities have been created through the delivery of the Chorley Works unemployment project 
and inward investment campaign which also resulted in companies relocating to the borough. The 
Chorley Time Credits programme and Cleaner Chorley Campaign have helped ensure that residents 
from all areas of Chorley are taking an active role in their communities. Initiatives to overcome social 
isolation, the delivery of support for those most affected by the welfare reforms and the availability of 
short term food provision for individuals in crisis situations have increased the support available for 
the most vulnerable people and families within the borough. 

 

6. The Corporate Strategy for 2014/15 looks to retain the vision, priorities and long term outcomes 
agreed through comprehensive consultation carried out in 2012.   

 
7. The refreshed Corporate Strategy includes 18 projects, which are made up of 16 new projects and 

two projects carried over from the existing Corporate Strategy. The projects have been identified and 
chosen for inclusion in the Corporate Strategy for their ability to create a significant impact in each of 
the priority areas, and across all areas of the borough. The ambitious set of projects aims to build on 
the work done over the last two years and to address big issues such as the sustainability of public 
services. 

 

Agenda Page 11 Agenda Item 5



 

8. The performance measures which help us to know how we are getting better have also been 
reviewed and updated. This includes making some targets more challenging, where we are already 
performing well, as well as adding some new measures to ensure we can demonstrate the impact the 
new projects will have, such as digital access and inclusion. 

 

Confidential report 
Please bold as appropriate 

Yes  No 

 

Key Decision? 
Please bold as appropriate 

Yes  No 

 

Reason  
Please bold as appropriate 

1, a change in service 
provision that impacts upon 
the service revenue budget by 
£100,000 or more 

2, a contract worth £100,000 
or more 

3, a new or unprogrammed 
capital scheme of £100,000 or 
more 

4, Significant impact in 
environmental, social or 
physical terms in two or 
more wards  

 
 
REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION(S) 

(If the recommendations are accepted) 

9. The Corporate Strategy is the main document within the council’s corporate business 
planning process and is a key driver for delivering the council’s long-term vision, priorities, 
strategic outcomes and targets. To ensure the document remains relevant, the Corporate 
Strategy is reviewed and refreshed on an annual basis and where appropriate changes are 
recommended, including the introduction of new key projects to support delivery of the 
strategy and deliver real improvements for the community we serve. 

 

ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED 

10. None. 
 

CORPORATE PRIORITIES 
 
11. This report relates to the following Strategic Objectives: 
 

Involving residents in improving their local 
area and equality of access for all 

 A strong local economy  

Clean, safe and healthy communities  An ambitious council that does more 
to meet the needs of residents and 
the local area 

 

 
 

BACKGROUND 
 

12. The Corporate Strategy provides a clear statement of what the council aims to achieve over the next 
three years. The strategy sets out not only the council’s vision, priorities, and long term outcomes for 
the period 2014/15 to 2016/17 but also how we will measure our achievements and those key 
projects which will be delivered over the year ahead. The Corporate Strategy identifies the following 
key priorities: 

 

Agenda Page 12 Agenda Item 5



a. Involving residents in improving their local area and equality of access for all; 
b. Clean, safe and healthy communities; 
c. A strong local economy; and 
d. An ambitious council that does more to meet the needs of residents and the local area. 

 

PERFORMANCE OF THE CORPORATE STRATEGY IN 2013/14 

 
13. A full review of the performance of the Corporate Strategy (including measures) has been completed 

and overall performance of the Corporate Strategy in 2013/14 has been very good. 
 

14. The council has demonstrated its commitment to economic development with the delivery of visible 
improvements to the town centre and increased employment opportunities through the delivery of the 
Chorley Works unemployment project and inward investment campaign which resulted in companies 
relocating to the borough. The Chorley Time Credits programme and environmental improvements as 
part of the Cleaner Chorley Campaign have helped ensure that residents from all areas of Chorley 
are taking an active role in their communities. Initiatives to overcome social isolation, the delivery of 
support for those most affected by the welfare reforms and the availability of short term food provision 
for individuals in crisis situations have increased the support available for the most vulnerable people 
and families within the borough. 

 

15. The current Corporate Strategy includes 20 key projects aimed at delivering activity to support the 
four priority areas. Of these projects, 80% are complete or on track to deliver outcomes by the end of 
April 2015. Two projects (10%) will progress to the next stages of delivery as part of the refresh of the 
2014/15 Corporate Strategy; these are Friday Street Health Centre and the Chorley Youth Zone. The 
two remaining projects (10%), the development of Astley Park and the Play and Open Spaces 
Strategy, are much larger programmes of work with delivery scheduled over a number of years. 
These two projects will continue to be delivered and monitored through the delivery of the 
organisational plan.  

 

16. The projects that are yet to be completed have identified clear timescales for delivery and will 
continue to be monitored through to their completion alongside the new Corporate Strategy projects, 
and reported through quarterly monitoring reports. A full list of projects along with a current position 
statement is available in appendix A. 

 
17. The strategy also included 28 key measures to make it possible to monitor progress towards 

achieving the priorities and long term outcomes. The measures were selected to demonstrate the 
ambitions of the council and the wish to target areas of underperformance.  At quarter two, 71% of 
these indicators are performing above target or within the 5% tolerance. Further details are available 
in the quarter 2 monitoring report which was presented to Executive Cabinet in November. 

 
DEVELOPMENT OF THE CORPORATE STRATEGY 2014/15 – 2016/17 
 
18. The priorities and long term outcomes identified on approval of the Corporate Strategy have been 

retained for 2014/15 to reflect a continued commitment to the priorities under which the 
administration were elected, ensuring the long term impact of strategic activity and investment.  

 

19. The refresh of the Corporate Strategy proposes 18 projects that will directly support achievement of 
the Council’s strategic priorities and long term outcomes. 

 

20. In particular the projects aim to demonstrate the Council’s vision to be an ambitious council that 
achieves more by listening to the whole community and exceeding their needs. The projects have 
been developed to address big issues such as the sustainability of public services, and to deliver 
tangible improvements across the borough. 

 

Agenda Page 13 Agenda Item 5



21. Organisational sustainability is an area that the LGA peer challenge team encouraged us to 
consider further. This is being directly addressed through the project to examine future business 
models, but we are already working more closely with partners, communities and volunteers in the 
delivery of services and will continue to do this even more through new projects such as delivery of 
the public service reform work streams, the development and delivery of community action plans 
and the embedding of time credits. 

 

22. Projects which will deliver tangible outputs include the destination play area in Astley Park, 
improvements to Market Street again the development and delivery of community action plans has 
the potential to deliver tangible improvements to communities’ right across the borough. 

 

23. The projects also aim to highlight Chorley further as a great place to visit, stay and invest in through 
projects to increase visitor numbers, organise a new Chorley flower show and progress key 
employment sites. 

 

24. Building a strong local economy continues to be the Council’s top priority, with the proposed projects 
aiming to support local businesses and attract new investors both in the town centre through 
projects such as improvements to Market Street and Market Walk and also wider within the borough 
through projects to progress employment sites, increase visitors to Chorley and the Chorley flower 
show. 

 

25. Another important consideration in developing the projects has been ensuring that all areas of the 
borough will see a positive impact through the delivery of the projects. The aim is not to specifically 
focus on either the town centre or rural communities, but to ensure where possible projects have the 
potential to have a positive impact on any community within the borough. Projects which support this 
aim include digital access and inclusions, the development and delivery of community actions plans, 
delivery of improved CCTV provision, explore alternative ways of providing home ownership and 
improving the functionality of online services. 

26. As part of the delivery of the 2013/14 Corporate Strategy the time credits scheme was successfully 
extended beyond a health and social care focus to cover the whole community. Building on this 
success the 2014/15 Corporate Strategy will look to further develop and strengthen the scheme by 
exploring opportunities within the delivery of each of the Corporate Strategy projects to embed the 
use of time credits. The capability of each individual corporate strategy project to utilise and support 
time credits will be assessed with actions and appropriate measures identified to ensure we are 
maximising the potential use of time credits across the council’s priority areas. 
    

27. A copy of the updated Corporate Strategy is attached as appendix B.  It should be noted that the 
projects will be delivered within existing resources where possible, however the scope and scale of 
some will be determined based on the availability of additional funding.  Any proposals for additional 
budget investment will be presented to full council as part of the budget setting process in March 
2015. 

 
 
28. The key proposed projects and an overview of what they will deliver is shown below: 

Improving residents in improving their local area and equality of access for all 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Digital inclusion is the ability of individuals and groups to gain the benefits 
of information and communication technologies in order to enhance their 
access to public services and their quality of life. 
 
This project involves the delivery of eight specific actions with the aim to 
ensure that everyone in the borough can get online, do more online and 
benefit from being online. In summary these actions include: 

Agenda Page 14 Agenda Item 5



 
 

1. Digital access 
and  inclusion  

(New) 
 
 

1. Raising awareness of online access and technology; 
2. Examine options to deliver technology to hard to reach groups; 
3. Examine options to provide low cost equipment to non-profit groups. 
4. To work with other organisations to provide public access to 

technology in high need locations. 
5. Develop a directory of free public access points across the borough; 
6. Deliver the Council’s digital strategy – improving the Council’s 

online services; 
7. To work in partnership with other agencies to develop the skills of 

welfare benefits claimants to enable them to claim online. 
8. To work with other organisations develop options for providing 

training in the use of computers to events for the public 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

2. Development 
and delivery of 
community 
action plans 

               (New)  

The aim of this project is to better understand community needs and to 
work with partner agencies, such as Police, Fire Rescue, LCC, Health and 
housing providers to coordinate, integrate and deliver services at a local 
level when it is appropriate. 
 
Some elements of this work are already being piloted in Clayton Brook, and 
will be rolled out to other urban and rural community areas. In each case 
the community action plan will identify priorities for each area, including the 
need, use, and requirements for community facilities, transport 
infrastructure, CCTV, crime and policing, health and wellbeing of 
communities and improvements to local service centres. 
 
 

 
 

3. Implement a 

Working 

Together with 

Families 

Employment 

scheme. 

             (New)  

This project will deliver a scheme to engage with residents who are more 
removed from employment with the aim to incentivise them to participate 
into routes into employment. Once engaged residents would be further 
supported through existing unemployment programmes such as Chorley 
Works.  
 

 The project will be delivered in partnership with LCC, CCH and 
DWP.  

 LCC and DWP have together identified 140 families who would 
potentially benefit from the scheme and who are not currently 
participating in routes to employment  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

4. Chorley Flower 
Show 
(New) 

 
 

Following on from Chorley’s successes in both the Britain in Bloom and 
North West in Bloom awards, this project will see the creation of a flower 
show in Chorley. 
 
For its first year it will be delivered as part of the Town and Country Festival 
which is being organised by a newly formed committee which includes the 
Council as well as other local community groups and businesses. 
 
The Chorley flower show will follow on from the RHS Chelsea Flower show, 
where we aim to present an exhibit which can then be brought back and 
incorporated into the Chorley Flower Show. 
 
The intention is for this to become an annual event to rival other well know 
flower shows which will draw in people from across the region and beyond, 
and support local businesses. 
 
The event is in the diary for Friday, Saturday and Sunday 24, 25 and 26 
July 2015. 

Agenda Page 15 Agenda Item 5



A strong local economy 

5. Deliver 
improvements to 
Market Street 
(New) 

 

Work has already been undertaken improving the public realm on the 

Southern end of Market Street. This project will now look to replicate this 

work on the Northern end of the street and will include creating a shared 

pedestrian and vehicular thoroughfare with landscape enhancements and 

improvements to crossings for pedestrians and cyclists.  

 

The scope of this project is the design and creation of plans for changes to 

the public realm areas and the delivery of these plans.  

 

The project requires a budget investment of 750k. 

6. Progress key 
employment sites  

(New) 
 

Creating jobs for local people is one of the Council’s top priorities and 
developing land as employment sites has the potential to create thousands 
of jobs for local people.  
 
The scope of the work will include undertaking site investigations and 
assessments, preparing master plans, establishing stakeholder groups and 
preparing planning applications of the following sites: 
 

 Group 1 (Land at Buckshaw)  

 Cowling farm   

 Southern Commercial   

 Euxton Lane  
 

7. Increase visitor 
numbers to Chorley 

(New) 
  

A programme of work will be developed to improve Chorley’s tourism 
economy. This is likely to include carrying out a comprehensive marketing 
campaign to promote Chorley’s assets and excellent location, and may also 
include establishing a tourism forum involving a wide range of businesses 
from the sector.  
 
It will also include delivery of the 2015 events programme, which will 
include the continuation of key events such as Picnic in the Park and 
Chorley Live, the expansion of newer events such as the What’s your story, 
Chorley? word festival, together with the addition of a number of new 
events, including a national cycle race, which will aim to bring in even more 
people to Chorley.  
 

8. Progress plans to 
extend Market Walk  

(New) 
 

The scope of this project would be to develop the current proposals in more 
detail, and develop them into a planning application (This will include 
addressing parking and other issues). In parallel with this work, we will 
continue to generate retail and leisure interest in the development. The aim 
of the project will be to achieve planning permission for the development, 
pre-let agreements for 65% of the development and be able to present a 
financially viable scheme which will bring a new quality offer to the town 
centre to Full Council by late Spring 2015. 
 

Clean, safe and healthy communities 

9. Destination Play 
area Astley Park  

(New) 
 

This work is part of the Astley 2020 five year development plan to improve 
facilities and develop the offer at Astley Hall and park.  
 
This project will deliver a themed play space with sections for younger and 
older children, plans have been approved by council and it is intended that 
work will begin in the next few months.  

Agenda Page 16 Agenda Item 5



 
The new play space will be located at the side of the Pavilion and the 
current small play area and will consist of –  

 a theme of Royalists and Roundheads, with links to Astley Hall, where it 
is believed Oliver Cromwell once stayed. 

 will be based on the concept of a castle ruin with natural stone to form 
‘rooms’ which will be linked to footpaths 

 play equipment will be spaced throughout and will include slides, 
climbing stacks, zip wires, swings, a hip-hop see-saw, balance trails 
and a wall tower amongst many other things  
 

Work is expected to begin on site in November with a view to the 
destination play area being finished in spring 2015 
 

10. Deliver 
improvements to 
Rangletts 
recreation ground 

(New) 
 

This project is part of a larger programme of work to improve play areas 
and sports facilities throughout the Chorley borough. The programme of 
work aims to support and promote the health and wellbeing of residents 
providing opportunities for people of all ages to undertake physical activity 
in the natural environment. 
 
The project will deliver major improvements to the Rangletts recreation 
ground including a multi-use games area, extended play facilities, allotment 
space and improvements to the footpaths and lighting. A skate and BMX 
park is also being developed to meet the needs of older children, an 
element that was identified following consultation with local families.   
 
The £45,000 project is being funded as part of contributions from the 
nearby Eccleston Park and Duke Street housing developments. Work is 
expected to begin in the next few months and will be done in phases to 
ensure that there is minimal disruption to the park. 
 

11. Develop and agree 
plans for delivery of 
the Friday Street 
Health Centre 

          (Continuation) 

This project involves a programme of work to facilitate the delivery of the 
Friday Street Health Centre.  This work includes the commissioning and 
delivery of a feasibility study on the centre. The commissioning and delivery 
of a health impact assessment on the centre itself and services that are to 
be located within the centre. The project will also involve a piece of work in 
order to gain commitment and support from the Clinical Senate and the 
development of a business model and financial sustainability plan. The 
project will aim to move towards planning application by Summer 2015.   

 

12. Establish a 
business case and 
model for an Extra 
Care scheme  

(New) 
 

Extra care is accommodation which is designed to meet the needs of older 
people and those who are vulnerable. The scheme provides 24 hour 
domiciliary services enabling customers to retain the ability to live 
independently. A preference to introduce extra care housing into the town 
centre was identified whilst developing the town centre and Fleet Street 
master plan.  
 
The scope of the project is to establish a business case and model for 
providing an Extra Care scheme in Chorley and will include working with 
health partners and the HCA to explore the feasibility. The scope does not 
include the development of the building.   
 
Expected outcomes by the end of 2016 include an agreed model, proposed 
costing and scheme in place including a bid for funding and an agreed way 
forward with partners.  

13. Explore alternative 
ways of providing 

This project will look at the existing issues relating to home ownership in 
particular delivering low cost and shared ownership and explore alternative 

Agenda Page 17 Agenda Item 5



home ownership 
(New) 

 

means of providing home ownership in Chorley. 
 
The project will include reviewing the Council’s Affordable Housing Policies, 
and exploring a new model of housing delivery which enables residents of 
Chorley on low incomes to access home ownership. 
 

14. Delivery of an 
improved CCTV 
provision 

(New) 
 

Chorley’s CCTV system is aimed at preventing and detecting a wide range 
of crimes helping to protect residents, the environment and the people who 
work and visit the borough.  The system is solely owned and operated by 
the council.  
 
In January 2014 the Council’s Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
established a task group to investigate the Councils CCTV service; 
following this a number of recommendations were made by the group on 
CCTV infrastructure.  
 
The recommendation presented to Executive Cabinet on 23rd October 2014 
is that a phased capital work programme is implemented to upgrade the 
current CCTV infrastructure, including a capital budget of £250,000 to fund 
the capital works over a period of three years. Options to be explored 
include outsourcing, subscription and Parish Council contributions to the 
CCTV infrastructure upgrade. Consideration is also to be given to any new 
system and equipment being compatible with wider local authority services.   
 
This scope of this project will be the procurement and delivery of an 
improved CCTV infrastructure to meet the needs of residents and improve 
feelings of safety across the borough. 

An Ambitious council that does more to meet the needs of residents and the local area 

15. Improve the 
functionality of 
online services 

(New) 
 

This is phase 2 of the development of the external web site to improve 
functionality and increase the number of customer contact and requests 
through digital channels.  
 
Scope:  

 Review of Capita contract 

 Improved website functionality 

 Increased availability of self-service options or other alternatives 

 Introduce online applications for all services  

 Default approach to be on providing digital access to services and 
information for customers 

 

 
16. Investigate future 

business models 
for public services 
in Chorley   

(New) 
 

This project will investigate how we can make public services in Chorley 
sustainable over the longer term.  
 
The work will involve looking at options for delivering public services in the 
borough and will include testing the viability of a unitary model and other 
models identified as part of this work.    

17. Deliver the Chorley 
Public Service 
Reform Board work 
plan  

(New) 
 

The board has a clear focus on how organisations can collectively deliver 
high quality public services to the public efficiently and effectively ensuring 
a better service for communities and better outcomes and value for 
residents.  
 
The board has a number of work streams to deliver over the next year 
including assets, data sharing, joint commissioning and integrated 
wellbeing services.  
 

Agenda Page 18 Agenda Item 5



 
MEASURING PROGRESS 

 

27. The strategy includes 31 performance measures that will be measured and reported against in 
order to demonstrate how well we are doing in achieving the priorities and long term outcomes. All 
of the measures have been reviewed and whilst the majority of the current measures will be 
retained, this report proposes changes to the target of seven measures, changes to the definition 
of two measures in order to clarify what is being measured and reported, the deletion of one 
measure and the addition of four new measures.  

 

28. The proposed changes to the measures are either because the targets were being easily achieved 
or the factors determining performance have changed. Also in terms of the new measures these 
have been included to directly link with some of the new projects which are being proposed and to 
demonstrate the impact that they are expected to have.  Examples include ‘the progress of key 
employment sites’ and ‘digital access and inclusion’.  

 

29. The measures which are subject to change are set out in the table below: 

 

No. Indicator Proposed Change 
1. % population with NVQ level 3 or above The target has been reviewed to align with 

current performance, 57% 
2. Number of projected jobs created through 

targeted interventions 
The indicator name has been changed to reflect 

that the measure includes projected jobs. 

3. Number of projected jobs created through inward 
investment 

The indicator name has been changed to reflect 

that the measure includes projected jobs.  

4. % of working age people on out of work benefits Target changed to 10.6% reflecting the current 

National figure  

5. The % of 16-18 year olds who are not in 
education, employment or training (NEET) 

Target reduced to 4.8% to reflect current 

improved performance  

6. Growth in business rate base Target reduced to 2% to reflect current levels of 

business growth  

7. Number of employment sites brought forward New indicator, target of 2 suggested for the first 

year.  

8. % increase in visitor numbers New indicator, target to be baseline for the first 

year. 

9. % of domestic violence detections It is recommended that this target is removed. 

This is because the home office has introduced 

a new classification for the recording of crimes 

This provides an opportunity to transform the way public services are 
delivered locally and to explore public service integration, particularly 
around health and wellbeing.  The work of the Board is jointly funded by 
Chorley and South Ribble Clinical Commissioning Group, Lancashire Care 
Foundation Trust, Lancashire Teaching Hospitals Trust and Lancashire 
County Council. 
 

18. Continue to explore 
options to deliver 
the Chorley Youth 
Zone 

           (Continuation) 

This project will move into its second year, work completed to date includes 
specifying what facilities, services and partners will operate from the Youth 
Zone.   
 
Moving forward the project will now focus on the location of the Youth 
Zone, exploring alternative sites and different delivery models with partners.  
 

Agenda Page 19 Agenda Item 5



which has resulted in the number of detections 

no longer being recorded. We are currently 

working with the police and PCC to explore the 

possibility of using alternative measures. 

10. Number of Homelessness Preventions and 
Reliefs 

Target increased to 700 per annum based on 

improved performance levels as at March 2014 

11. Number of long term empty properties in the 
borough 

Target 195; suggest target is profiled over the 

year reflecting how it can take time to bring 

properties back into use. 

12. % Households living in fuel poverty Target has been reviewed to align with current 

performance, target 10%. 

13. % of service requests received online New indicator, target to be baseline for the first 

year. 

14. % increase in digital access points across the 

borough 
New indicator, target to be baseline for the first 

year. 

 

30. In the case of three of the new measures, the target for the first year will be to set a baseline. It is 
not yet possible to set a target for these projects as the indicators are measuring new initiatives, it 
is therefore proposed to use the next year to gather baseline information which will be used to set 
a target for next year. 

 
31. The measures continue to reflect the council’s commitment to set ambitious goals for improvement.  

The refreshed indicators and targets are included on the updated version of the Corporate Strategy 
presented at Appendix B. 

 

 

IMPLICATIONS OF REPORT 

 
32. This report has implications in the following areas and the relevant Directors’ comments are 

included: 

 

Finance  Customer Services   

Human Resources  Equality and Diversity   

Legal  Integrated Impact Assessment 
required? 

 

No significant implications in this 
area 

 Policy and Communications  

 
 
COMMENTS OF THE STATUTORY FINANCE OFFICER  
 

33. The report sets out the administration’s proposals for future years. In terms of resourcing, many of 
the projects will be delivered using existing resources, any additional resourcing requirements will 
be addressed during the 2014/15 budget process and adjustments made to the projects as 
required. 

 
COMMENTS OF THE MONITORING OFFICER  
 

34. No comments 

 

COMMENTS OF THE HEAD OF POLICY AND COMMUNICATIONS 
 

Agenda Page 20 Agenda Item 5



35. An Integrated Impact Assessment has been undertaken on the overall Corporate Strategy, and 
individual impact assessments will be completed for each key project. The strategy itself includes a 
number of projects and long term outcomes that focus on improving outcomes and ease of access 
to services, which will particularly help people with protected characteristics. 

 
GARY HALL  
CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
 

There are no background papers to this report. 

    

Report Author Ext Date Doc ID 

Natalie Taylor-Proctor  5248 November 2014 Corporate Strategy Council Report 

 

Agenda Page 21 Agenda Item 5



Appendix A – 2013/14 Corporate Strategy projects position statement 
 

Project Position 

Deliver the Welfare Reform Action Plan 
 

Scheduled to complete January 2015 
 

Extend Chorley's time credits (Year 1) 
 

Scheduled to complete January 2015 -  work is 
expected to continue further developing the scheme 
and embedding the use of time credits across council 
work streams 

Implement initiatives to overcome social 
isolation/Connecting communities through food 

Scheduled to complete January 2015 -  work to 
continue through the delivery of the Organisational Plan  

Expand the food bank 
 

Complete 

Develop the offer at Chorley’s credit union 
 

Complete 

Deliver the Chorley Works unemployment project  
 

Scheduled to complete March 2015 
 

Carry out improvements to the town centre (Town 
centre master plan) 

Complete - further improvements included in 2014/15 
Corporate Strategy  

Deliver the inward investment campaign Scheduled to complete December 2014 

Market Walk Complete  

Deliver the Chorley Youth Zone 
 

Currently rated amber this work will continue in 2014/15 
Corporate Strategy exploring sites and delivery models 
with partners in order to progress the delivery of the 
Youth Zone  

Implement  Astley 2020 
 

Ongoing - work is on schedule and a number of actions 
have already been delivered as part of the delivery of 
this five year development plan.  Delivery will now 
continue through the Organizational Plan.  

Host Chorley element of cycling tour of Lancashire Scheduled completion April 2015 

Year 1 of the play, open space and playing pitch 
strategy 

 

Approved by Executive Cabinet in August 2014 this 
project is now being implemented - specific actions 
have been included in 2014/15 Corporate Strategy 

Friday Street health centre 
 

Currently rated Amber this work will continue in 
2014/15 Corporate Strategy progressing plans to 
facilitate the delivery of the Friday Street Health Centre 

Deliver environmental improvements as part of the 
Cleaner Chorley campaign 

Scheduled completion January 2015 

Energy advice switching support services Scheduled completion March 2015  

Change Woking practices to fit neighbourhood working 
and public health priorities 

Scheduled completion December 2014 

Deliver a project to improve customer satisfaction Scheduled completion January2015. 

Extend the use of mobile devices across the Council Complete 

Bring the property services contract back in house Complete   

Agenda Page 22 Agenda Item 5



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

Corporate Strategy 2014/15 – 2016/17 

How will we know we are getting 
better? Targets for March 2016 

Targets for March 2016 
 % of people satisfied with their neighbourhood as a 

place to live, Target: 85% 

 % of people who regularly participate in 
volunteering, Target: 25% 

 % of people who feel that they cannot influence 
decision making in their local area, Target: Less 
than 50% 

 The number of SOA’s in the worst 20%, Target: 8 

 % of the population with NVQ level 3 and above, 
Target: 57% 

 % increase in digital access points across the 
borough, Target: baseline 

 

 % of the population satisfied with street cleanliness, Target: 
65% 

 % of the population feeling safe during the day, Target: 90% 

 % of the population feeling safe during the night, Target: 70% 

 Number of visits to leisure centres, Target: 1,000,000 

 Number of young people taking part in ‘Get up and Go’ 
activities, Target: 15,000 

 % of the population satisfied with parks and open spaces, 
Target: 75% 

 Number of affordable homes delivered, Target: 300 (by 
2016/17)  

 Number of homelessness preventions and reliefs, Target: 200 
per annum 

 Number of long term empty properties in the borough, Target: 

Reduce to 195 

 % of households living in fuel poverty, Target: Better than 
North West average 

 % of residents satisfied with the way the council runs 
things, Target: 65% 

 % of residents who feel that the Council provides value 
for money, Target: 55% 

 % of customers dissatisfied with the service they have 
received from the council, Target: Less than 20% 

 % of service requests received online  

 

 The number of town centre visits, Target: 37,500 

 Median workplace earnings in the borough, Target: Better 
than the North West average 

 Overall employment rate, Target: 80% 

 Number of projected  jobs created through targeted 
interventions, Target:100 

 Number of projected  jobs created through inward 
investment, Target: 50 

 Number of working age people on out of work benefits, 
Target: Better than national average 

 The % of 16-18 year olds not in education, employment or 
training, Target: 4.8% 

 Growth in business rate base, Target: 2% increase 

 % of businesses ceasing to trade, Target: Better than the 
North West Average 

 Number of employment sites being brought forward, 
Target:2 

 % increase in visitor numbers, Target: baseline 

Improve the 
functionality of 

online services 

 

Develop and agree 
plans for delivery 

of the Friday Street 

Health Centre 

 

Explore alternative 
ways of providing 

home ownership   

Investigate future 
business models 

for public services 

in Chorley 

 

 

Deliver the 
Chorley 

Public Service 
Reform Board 

work plan  

Continue to 
explore 

options to 
deliver the 

Chorley 

Youth Zone  

 

Delivery of an 
improved CCTV 

provision   

 
Destination Play 

area Astley Park   

 

Deliver 
improvements to 

Rangletts 

recreation ground 

 

Establish a 
business case and 
model for an Extra 

Care scheme 

 
Chorley Flower 

Show 

 

Implement a 
Working Together 

with Families 
Employment 

scheme 

 

Development and 
delivery of 

community action 

plans 

 
Digital access and 

inclusion 

 

 

Deliver 
improvements to 

Market Street 

 

Progress Plans to 
extend Market 

Walk   

 

Increase visitor 
numbers to 

Chorley  
Progress key 

employment sites 

Appendix B 

A
genda P

age 23
A

genda Item
 5



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1 Minutes of meeting Tuesday, 23 September 2014 of Council
	5 Corporate Strategy 2014/15 to 2016/17

